

CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS

617.606

C532c

OF THE

CHICAGO DENTAL SOCIETY

17.606 C532c



3 8198 321 090 738

Constitution and by-laws of th UI chs
THE UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS AT CHICAGO

617.606

Chicago Dental Society

C532c

Constitution and by-laws

90899

DATE	ISSUED TO
JUN 1 8 1909	<i>J. Armstrong</i>

617.606
C532c


Return this book on or before the
Latest Date stamped below.

University of Illinois Library, Chicago

JUN 18 1956

200: 10
28

(45479)



Digitized by the Internet Archive
in 2010 with funding from
CARLI: Consortium of Academic and Research Libraries in Illinois

CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS
OF THE
CHICAGO DENTAL SOCIETY
WITH
CODE OF ETHICS

LIBRARY
U. OF ILL. - CHICAGO

ORGANIZED JANUARY 26, 1864

Re-organized under General Incorporation Law of the
State of Illinois, May 1, 1878

CHICAGO:

LIBBY & SHERWOOD PRINTING CO.

1902

LIBRARY

617.606

Q532c

CONSTITUTION.

ARTICLE I.

NAME.

This Association shall be called "THE CHICAGO DENTAL SOCIETY.

ARTICLE II.

OFFICERS.

The officers of this Society shall be a President, First and Second Vice Presidents, a Recording and a Corresponding Secretary, a Treasurer, a Librarian, a Board of Censors (to consist of three persons) and a Board of Directors (to consist of three persons, chosen to serve for one, two and three years respectively, and thereafter one member elected annually to serve three years, the senior member being the chairman), all of whom shall be elected by ballot at the annual meeting in April (excepting the Board of Directors), and shall continue in office one year, or until their successors are elected and qualified. The President and Recording Secretary shall be *ex-officio* members of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE III.

MEMBERS.

There shall be three classes of members, Active, Corresponding and Honorary. Active members shall consist of those who sign the Constitution and By-laws of the Society, and who shall have paid into the treasury an initiation fee of three dollars. Corresponding members shall consist of such persons as have been Active members but have moved from the city and are exempt from payment of dues. Honorary members shall consist of such persons as shall be duly proposed, balloted for and elected, as in the case of Active members. The yearly dues of active members shall be three dollars, and in no case shall the initiation fee and dues exceed that amount for one year, and no member shall be allowed to take part in the proceedings of the Society while his yearly dues remain unpaid.

ARTICLE IV.

ELECTION OF MEMBERS.

Candidates for admission shall be proposed by two members at any regular meeting, and the Initiation Fee shall be deposited with the Secretary. They may be balloted for at a subsequent regular meeting, *provided* they are recommended by the Board of Censors.

An affirmative vote of three-fourths of the members present shall be necessary to an election.

If any person elected to membership shall neglect for three months to sign the Constitution and By-Laws, his election shall be void, and the Initiation Fee forfeited.

If candidates are rejected, the Initiation Fee shall be returned to them.

ARTICLE V.

EXPULSION.

Any member may be expelled for unprofessional conduct, malpractice or gross immorality, on being duly convicted thereof; three-fourths of the members present at a regular meeting voting for the expulsion.

ARTICLE VI.

MEETINGS.

The regular meetings of this Society shall be held the first Tuesday of each month (except July, August and September), at the hour of 8:00 P.M. That held on the first Tuesday of April shall be the annual meeting.

ARTICLE VII.

FUNDS.

The funds of this Society shall not be appropriated for any purpose other than the

usual necessary expenses, except by an affirmative vote of three-fourths of the members present at a regular meeting.

ARTICLE VIII.

DISSOLUTION.

In case a dissolution of this Society shall at any time be proposed by seven active members notice thereof shall be sent in writing to all the active members in good standing ; and if at the next regular meeting three-fourths of the members present vote for the proposition, the Society shall be dissolved, and its property sold at auction, and the proceeds divided equally among its members.

ARTICLE IX.

QUORUM.

Ten active members shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Society.

ARTICLE X.

ALTERATIONS AND AMENDMENTS.

Any alteration or amendment of, or addition to, the Constitution, shall be proposed in writing at a regular meeting only, and shall not be acted upon until the next regular meeting thereafter, and shall be adopted only by an affirmative vote of three-fourths of the members present.

BY-LAWS.

ARTICLE I.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OF THE BOARD OF CENSORS.

The Board of Directors shall have the general control and management of the property of the Society, subject to the By-Laws, and such orders and resolutions as shall from time to time be adopted by the Society. They shall act as an executive committee, and shall audit the accounts of the Recording Secretary and Treasurer, provide proper places for meetings, superintend the printing of the Society and transact such other business as may be referred to them.

The Board of Censors shall receive all applications for membership and thoroughly investigate them before recommending applicants to the Society; and they shall recommend no person for election who has not read the Constitution, By-Laws and Code of Ethics. They shall also have referred to them all charges of infractions of the Code of Ethics, and it shall be their duty to investigate such charges, and in case they find them to be sustained by the evidence, to so report to the Society.

ARTICLE II.

DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT.

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Society, and of the Board of Directors, call special meetings upon the request of ten active members, sign all diplomas, certificates, or letters testimonial, appoint all committees not otherwise provided for, countersign all orders of the Recording Secretary drawn upon the Treasurer by order of the Board of Directors, and be *ex officio* a member of all standing committees.

ARTICLE III.

DUTIES OF THE VICE PRESIDENTS.

The Vice Presidents shall in the absence of the President, perform the duties of the President, as president, as prescribed in Art. II of the By-Laws; and in case of the absence of those officers, a President *pro tem.* shall be elected by the Society.

ARTICLE IV.

DUTIES OF THE RECORDING SECRETARY.

The Recording Secretary shall keep minutes of all meetings, notify all officers and members of their election, and file in the office of the Recorder of Deeds for the County of Cook,

a certificate under the seal of the Society, giving the names and terms of office of the members of the Board of Directors, and in like manner whenever Directors are elected to fill vacancies, and also give notice to members of all meetings, sign all diplomas, certificates or letters testimonial, and draw all orders on the Treasurer for money ; keep just and true accounts between the Society and its members ; collect all moneys due to the Society, and pay over to the Treasurer all sums in his hands immediately, taking his receipt for the same ; and certify to all official acts of the Society, in connection with the President, and perform such other duties as the Society shall direct.

ARTICLE V.

DUTIES OF THE CORRESPONDING SECRETARY.

The Corresponding Secretary shall take charge of and conduct the correspondence of the Society. He shall keep a copy of all official letters he may write, with the replies to the same.

ARTICLE VI.

DUTIES OF THE TREASURER.

The Treasurer, previous to his installation in office, shall give a joint and several bond to

the Board of Directors (naming them) of the Society, with two sureties, to be approved by the Board, with such penalties and conditions as from time to time may be prescribed by them. His duties shall be to keep the funds of the Society, to pay all orders drawn on him, in accordance with the provisions of Art. VII of the By-Laws and none others ; to keep a current account of all moneys expended, to give the Society a statement of its funds at the regular meetings in January, July and October, and at the annual meeting in April render a full report of the receipts and disbursements of the year, with vouchers ; and to deliver up, when legally called upon to do so, all moneys, books, papers, etc., belonging to the Society, to his successor in office, or to whom the Society may especially appoint.

ARTICLE VII.

No money shall be paid out by the Treasurer, except upon the order of the Board of Directors, and then only upon an order drawn by the Recording Secretary, countersigned by the President, which order must specify the particular purpose for which the same is drawn.

ARTICLE VIII.

DUTIES OF THE LIBRARIAN.

The Librarian shall have charge of all books, manuscripts, anatomical and pathological specimens, apparatus, instruments, or scientific property of whatever kind. He shall fix to each donation the name of the donor; keep a catalogue of books, specimens, etc., in his possession, and render a full report of the condition thereof at least once a year. He shall require of each member who shall take a book from the library, a receipt for the same, and in case such book is not returned within three months, such member shall forfeit and pay twice the value thereof. He shall make and post conspicuously, such other rules for the management of the library as he may find necessary and the Society shall approve.

ARTICLE IX.

QUALIFICATIONS AND DUTIES OF MEMBERS.

Candidates for active membership in this Society shall be of good moral character and legally qualified practitioners of dentistry in the State of Illinois.

No member of this Society shall receive a pupil who does not receive ample guarantee

that he will graduate at a respectable Dental College before commencing to practice dentistry.

ARTICLE X.

REJECTED CANDIDATES.

No candidate rejected shall be proposed again for membership within one year, unless by unanimous consent of members present.

ARTICLE XI.

DEBATES.

No member in debate shall speak more than ten minutes, and not more than twice upon the same subject, except by consent of the majority.

ARTICLE XII.

PERSONALITIES.

Personalities between members during the sessions of the Society shall not be allowed, and shall always be ruled out of order.

ARTICLE XIII.

VOTING.

Every member present shall vote on all questions, if called upon to do so.

ARTICLE XIV.

PAYMENT OF DUES.

Any member failing to pay his annual dues within one year shall cease to be a member of this Society, and shall have no right, title or claim to any portion of the funds or property of this Society.

ARTICLE XV.

VISITORS AT MEETINGS.

Any member may invite his friends to attend the meetings of the Society. Students of all active members shall be permitted to be present at the meetings.

ARTICLE XVI.

ADDRESSES AND PROFESSIONAL PAPERS.

A copy of every address and professional paper read before this Society shall be kept by the Librarian. No such paper shall be published as having been so read, unless authorized by a vote of its members ; but the Society shall adopt a standing rule in respect to the publication of its papers or discussions.

ARTICLE XVII.

CHANGE OF RESIDENCE.

Every active member shall notify the Recording Secretary of a change of residence as soon as practicable.

ARTICLE XVIII.

AMENDMENTS AND ALTERATIONS.

Any alteration or amendment, or addition to the By-Laws, shall be proposed in writing, at a regular meeting only, and shall not be acted upon until the next regular meeting thereafter, and shall be adopted only by an affirmative vote of three-fourths of the members present.

ARTICLE XIX.

OFFICERS ABSENTING THEMSELVES.

If any officer of this Society shall absent himself from three successive regular meetings, the said office may be declared vacant, and the Society may proceed to fill said vacancy.

ARTICLE XX.

EXPULSION.

Any member arraigned for trial before this Society shall have served upon him by the

Recording Secretary a copy of the specific charges against him at least one month previous to the time appointed for his trial.

CHAPTER XXI.

PARLIAMENTARY RULES.

“Roberts’ Rules of Order” shall be the code of the Society in case of any deficiency in these By-Laws.

ORDER OF BUSINESS.

1. All meetings of the Society shall be called to order by the Presiding Officer at the hour appointed.
2. Reading the minutes of the previous meeting.
3. Applications for membership and the election of members.
4. Reports from the Executive Committee, Recording Secretary, Corresponding Secretary, Treasurer and Librarian; at annual or quarterly meetings.
5. Reports from committees appointed for specific objects.
6. Addresses, Essays, Dissertations.
7. Election of Officers.
8. Unfinished business.
9. New business.

CODE OF ETHICS.

ARTICLE I. THE DUTIES OF THE PROFESSION TO THEIR PATIENTS.

Section 1. The dentist should be ever ready to respond to the wants of his patrons, and should fully recognize the obligations involved in the discharge of his duties toward them. As they are in most cases unable to correctly estimate the character of his operations, his own sense of right must guarantee faithfulness in their performance. His manner should be firm, yet kind and sympathizing, so as to gain the respect and confidence of his patients; and even the simplest case committed to his care should receive that attention which is due to operations performed on living, sensitive tissue.

Sec. 2. It is not to be expected that the patient will possess a very extended or a very accurate knowledge of professional matters. The dentist should make due allowance for this, patiently explaining many things which may seem quite clear to himself, thus endeavoring to educate the public mind so that it will properly appreciate the beneficent

efforts of our profession. He should encourage no false hopes by promising success when, in the nature of the case, there is uncertainty.

Sec. 3. The dentist should be temperate in all things, keeping both mind and body in the best possible health, that his patients may have the benefit of that clearness of judgment and skill which is their right.

ARTICLE II. MAINTAINING PROFESSIONAL CHARACTER.

Section 1. A member of the dental profession is bound to maintain its honor, and to labor earnestly to extend its sphere of usefulness. He should avoid everything in language and conduct calculated to dishonor his profession, and should ever manifest a due respect for his brethren. The young should show special respect to their seniors, the aged, special encouragement to their juniors.

Sec. 2. It is unprofessional to resort to public advertisements, cards, handbills, posters, or signs, calling attention to peculiar styles of work, lowness of prices, special modes of operating; or to claim superiority over neighboring practitioners; to publish

reports of cases or certificates in the public prints ; to circulate or recommend nostrums ; or to perform any other similar acts. But nothing in this section shall be so construed as to imply that it is unprofessional for dentists to announce in the public prints, or by cards, simply their names, occupation, and place of business, or, in the same manner, to announce their removal, absence from, or return to business, or to issue to their patients appointment cards having a fee bill for professional services thereon.

Sec. 3. When consulted by the patients of another practitioner, the dentist should guard against inquiries or hints disparaging to the family dentist, or calculated to weaken the patient's confidence in him ; and if the interests of the patient will not be endangered thereby, the case should be temporarily treated, and referred back to the family dentist.

Sec. 4. When general rules shall have been adopted by members of the profession practicing in the same localities in relation to fees, it is unprofessional and dishonorable to depart from those rules, except when variation of circumstances requires it. And it is ever to be regarded as unprofessional to warrant operations as an inducement to patronage.

ARTICLE III. CONSULTATIONS.

Consultations should be promoted in difficult or protracted cases, as they give rise to confidence, energy, and broader views in practice.

In consultations that courtesy and just dealing which is the right of all should be especially observed.

ARTICLE IV. THE RELATIVE DUTIES OF
DENTISTS AND PHYSICIANS.

Dental surgery is a specialty in medical science. Physicians and dentists should both bear this in mind. The dentist is professionally limited to diseases of the dental organs and adjacent parts. With these he should be more familiar than the general practitioner is expected to be; and while he recognizes the broader knowledge of the physician in regard to diseases of the general system, the latter is under equal obligations to respect his higher attainments in his specialty.

ARTICLE V. THE MUTUAL DUTIES OF THE
PROFESSION AND THE PUBLIC.

Dentists are frequently witnesses, and, at the same time, the best judges of the imposi-

tions perpetrated by quacks, and it is their duty to enlighten and warn the public in regard to them. For this and many other benefits conferred by the competent and honorable dentist, the profession is entitled to the confidence and respect of the public, who should always discriminate in favor of the true man of science and integrity against the empiric and impostor. The public has no right to tax the time and talents of the profession in examinations, prescriptions, or in any way without proper remuneration.

CHICAGO DENTAL SOCIETY.

Organized February 8th, 1864.

LIST OF OFFICERS.

1864.

President—E. W. HADLEY.

First Vice President—J. H. YOUNG.

Second Vice-President—L. BUSH.

Recording and Corresponding Secretary—E. W. SAWYER.

Treasurer—J. C. DEAN.

Librarian—W. W. ALLPORT.

Executive Committee—L. P. HASKELL, S. B. NOBLE, WM. ALBAUGH.

1864-1865.

President—E. W. HADLEY.

First Vice-President—G. H. CUSHING.

Second Vice-President—J. W. ELLIS.

Recording Secretary—J. C. FULLER.

Corresponding Secretary—E. A. BOGUE.

Treasurer—J. C. DEAN.

Librarian—T. FAY.

Executive Committee—L. P. HASKELL, J. H. YOUNG, A. W. FREEMAN.

1865-1866.

President—G. H. CUSHING.

First Vice-President—J. W. ELLIS.

Second Vice-President—J. C. FULLER.

Recording and Corresponding Secretary—J. C. DEAN.

Treasurer—S. B. NOBLE.

Librarian—W. A. STEVENS.

Executive Committee—J. H. YOUNG, A. J. HARRIS, WM. ALBAUGH.

1866-1867.

President—J. W. ELLIS.

First Vice-President—M. W. SHERWOOD.

Second Vice-President—S. B. NOBLE.

Recording and Corresponding Secretary—J. C.
DEAN.

Treasurer—WM. ALBAUGH.

Librarian—W. A. STEVENS.

Executive Committee—W. C. DYER, M. S. DEAN,
A. J. HARRIS.

1867-1868.

President—S. B. NOBLE.

First Vice-President—A. W. FREEMAN.

Second Vice-President—J. H. YOUNG.

Recording and Corresponding Secretary—A. E.
BROWN.

Treasurer—WM. ALBAUGH.

Executive Committee—J. W. ELLIS, G. H. CUSHING,
WM. ALBAUGH.

1868-1869.

President—M. S. DEAN.

First Vice-President—W. A. STEVENS.

Second Vice-President—A. E. BROWN.

Recording and Corresponding Secretary—A. W.
FREEMAN.

Treasurer—WM. ALBAUGH.

Librarian—ROBERT GIBSON.

Executive Committee—S. B. NOBLE, GEO. H.
CUSHING, A. E. BROWN.

1869-1870.

President—J. H. YOUNG.

First Vice President—E. D. SWAIN.

Second Vice-President—A. W. FREEMAN.

Recording and Corresponding Secretary—C. R. E.
KOCH.

Treasurer—WM. ALBAUGH.

Librarian—J. W. ELLIS.

Executive Committee—G. H. CUSHING, M. S.
DEAN, M. W. SHERWOOD.

1870-1871.

President—G. H. CUSHING.

First Vice-President—A. E. BROWN.

Second Vice-President—M. W. SHERWOOD.

Recording and Corresponding Secretary—E. D.
SWAIN.

Treasurer—WM. ALBAUGH.

Librarian—J. S. MARSH.

Executive Committee—J. N. CROUSE, M. S. DEAN,
C. R. E. KOCH.

1871-1872.

President—G. H. CUSHING.

First Vice-President—M. S. DEAN.

Second Vice-President—J. N. CROUSE.

Recording and Corresponding Secretary—E. D.
SWAIN.

Treasurer—WM. ALBAUGH.

Librarian—J. S. MARSH.

Executive Committee—M. S. DEAN, C. R. E. KOCH,
J. N. CROUSE.

1872-1873.

President—J. N. CROUSE.
 First Vice-President—M. S. DEAN.
 Second Vice-President—A. W. FREEMAN.
 Recording Secretary—E. D. SWAIN.
 Corresponding Secretary—M. W. SHERWOOD.
 Treasurer—C. R. E. KOCH.
 Librarian—J. B. BELL.
 Executive Committee—G. H. CUSHING, M. W.
 SHERWOOD, M. S. DEAN.

1873-1874.

President—M. S. DEAN.
 First Vice-President—C. R. E. KOCH.
 Second Vice-President—D. B. FREEMAN.
 Recording Secretary—E. D. SWAIN.
 Corresponding Secretary—J. B. BELL.
 Treasurer—J. F. THOMPSON.
 Librarian—M. W. SHERWOOD.
 Executive Committee—J. N. CROUSE, G. H.
 CUSHING, J. L. CLAPP.

1874-1875.

President—E. D. SWAIN.
 First Vice-President—C. R. E. KOCH.
 Second Vice-President—G. W. NICHOLS.
 Recording Secretary—D. B. FREEMAN.
 Corresponding Secretary—J. L. CLAPP.
 Treasurer—G. H. CUSHING.
 Librarian—C. R. E. KOCH.
 Executive Committee—M. S. DEAN, A. W. HARLAN,
 J. N. CROUSE.

1875-1876.

President—C. R. E. KOCH.
First Vice-President—A. W. HARLAN.
Second Vice-President—J. A. W. DAVIS.
Recording Secretary—D. B. FREEMAN.
Corresponding Secretary—J. S. SWARTLEY.
Treasurer—M. S. DEAN.
Librarian—C. R. E. KOCH.
Executive Committee—J. L. CLAPP, J. A. W. DAVIS,
E. D. SWAIN.

1876-1877.

President—D. B. FREEMAN.
First Vice-President—J. SMITH.
Second Vice-President—J. E. LOW.
Recording Secretary—E. NOYES.
Corresponding Secretary—M. S. DEAN.
Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.
Librarian—C. R. E. KOCH.
Executive Committee—G. H. CUSHING, E. D.
SWAIN, C. R. E. KOCH.

1877-1878.

President—G. H. CUSHING.
First Vice-President—T. W. BROPHY.
Second Vice President—H. A. MANSFIELD.
Recording Secretary—E. NOYES.
Corresponding Secretary—M. S. DEAN.
Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.
Librarian—C. R. E. KOCH.
Executive Committee—E. S. TALBOT, J. N. CROUSE,
G. W. NICHOLS.

1878-1879.

President—E. NOYES.

First Vice-President—A. W. HARLAN.

Second Vice-President—G. T. CARPENTER.

Recording Secretary—C. P. PRUYN.

Corresponding Secretary—M. S. DEAN.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—C. R. E. KOCH.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, T. W. BROPHY,
J. N. CROUSE.

1879-1880.

President—A. W. FREEMAN.

First Vice-President—T. W. BROPHY.

Second Vice-President—E. S. TALBOT.

Recording Secretary—C. P. PRUYN.

Corresponding Secretary—M. S. DEAN.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—C. R. E. KOCH.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, T. W. BROPHY,
J. N. CROUSE.

1880-1881.

President—G. H. CUSHING.

First Vice-President—W. C. DYER.

Second Vice-President—F. H. GARDINER.

Recording Secretary—D. M. CATTELL.

Corresponding Secretary—M. S. DEAN.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—C. R. E. KOCH.

Board of Directors—T. W. BROPHY, M. S. DEAN,
J. N. CROUSE.

OFFICERS.

29

1881-1882.

President—T. W. BROPHY.
First Vice-President—C. P. PRUYN.
Second Vice-President—A. W. HARLAN.
Recording Secretary—E. S. TALBOT.
Corresponding Secretary—M. S. DEAN.
Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.
Librarian—F. H. GARDINER.
Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, E. NOYES,
M. S. DEAN.

1882-1883.

President—E. S. TALBOT.
First Vice-President—F. H. GARDINER.
Second Vice-President—A. W. HOYT.
Recording Secretary—R. H. KIMBALL.
Corresponding Secretary—A. W. HARLAN.
Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.
Librarian—J. G. REID.
Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, E. NOYES
J. N. CROUSE.

1883-1884.

President—C. P. PRUYN.
First Vice-President—C. F. MATTESON.
Second Vice-President—J. W. WASSALL.
Recording Secretary—R. H. KIMBALL.
Corresponding Secretary—A. W. HARLAN.
Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.
Librarian—J. G. REID.
Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, E. NOYES,
J. N. CROUSE.

1884-1885.

President—A. W. HARLAN.

First Vice-President—F. H. GARDINER.

Second Vice-President—P. J. KESTER.

Recording Secretary—J. G. REID.

Corresponding Secretary—J. N. CROUSE.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—W. V.-B. AMES.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, E. NOYES,
J. N. CROUSE.Board of Censors—J. W. WASSALL, G. A.
CHRISTMANN, E. S. TALBOT.

1885-1886.

President—C. F. MATTESON.

First Vice-President—G. W. NICHOLS.

Second Vice-President—W. A. STEVENS.

Recording Secretary—A. W. HOYT.

Corresponding Secretary—P. J. KESTER.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—J. H. WOOLLEY.

Board of Directors—J. S. MARSHALL, E. S.
TALBOT, A. W. FREEMAN.Board of Censors—J. W. WASSALL, G. A.
CHRISTMANN, R. H. KIMBALL.

1886-1887.

President—F. H. GARDINER.

First Vice-President—P. J. KESTER.

Second Vice-President—W. V.-B. AMES.

Recording Secretary—J. G. REID.

Corresponding Secretary—A. E. MATTESON.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—A. W. HARLAN.

Board of Directors—GEO. H. CUSHING, J. A.
SWASEY, E. NOYES.Board of Censors—L. L. DAVIS, J. W. WASSALL,
B. L. RHEIN.

1887-1888.

President—J. G. REID,

First Vice-President—J. A. SWASEY.

Second Vice-President—G. H. BENTLEY.

Recording Secretary—C. N. JOHNSON.

Corresponding Secretary—W. V.-B. AMES.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—A. W. HARLAN.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, J. A. SWASEY,
E. NOYES.Board of Censors—B. L. RHEIN, J. W. WASSALL,
L. L. DAVIS.

1888-1889.

President—J. A. SWASEY.

First Vice-President—J. W. WASSALL.

Second Vice-President—W. V.-B. AMES.

Recording Secretary—C. N. JOHNSON.

Corresponding Secretary—LOUIS OTTOFY.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—A. W. HARLAN.

Board of Directors—J. N. CROUSE, G. H. CUSHING,
E. NOYES.Board of Censors—D. M. CATTELL, L. L. DAVIS,
C. F. HARTT.

1889-1890.

President—P. J. KESTER.

First Vice-President—D. M. CATTELL.

Second Vice-President—W. J. MARTIN.

Recording Secretary—A. E. BALDWIN.

Corresponding Secretary—LOUIS OTTOFY.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—A. W. HARLAN.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, E. NOYES,
J. A. DUNN.Board of Censors—F. H. GARDINER, L. L. DAVIS,
C. F. HARTT.

1890-1891.

President—C. N. JOHNSON.

First Vice-President—C. H. THAYER.

Second Vice-President—I. A. FREEMAN.

Recording Secretary—A. E. BALDWIN.

Corresponding Secretary—T. L. GILMER.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—A. W. HARLAN.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, E. NOYES,
J. A. DUNN.

Board of Censors—B. S. PALMER, E. A. ROYCE,
C. F. HARTT.

1891-1892.

President—D. M. CATTELL.

First Vice-President—J. W. WASSALL.

Second Vice-President—E. M. S. FERNANDEZ.

Recording Secretary—L. L. DAVIS.

Corresponding Secretary—T. L. GILMER.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—A. W. HARLAN.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, J. N. CROUSE,
J. A. DUNN.

Board of Censors—B. S. PALMER, GEO. J. DENNIS,
R. M. PAINE.

1892-1893.

President—J. W. WASSALL.

First Vice-President—T. L. GILMER.

Second Vice-President—E. A. ROYCE.

Recording Secretary—L. L. DAVIS.

Corresponding Secretary—G. J. DENNIS.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—J. H. SMYSER.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, J. N. CROUSE,
J. G. REID.

Board of Censors—A. H. PECK, B. D. WIKOFF,
D. M. GALLIE.

1893-1894.

President—J. W. WASSALL.

First Vice-President—J. H. WOOLLEY.

Second Vice-President—GARRETT NEWKIRK.

Recording Secretary—L. L. DAVIS.

Corresponding Secretary—G. J. DENNIS.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—J. J. WHALEY.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, J. N. CROUSE,
J. G. REID.

Board of Censors—H. W. SALE, E. R. CARPENTER,
D. C. BACON.

1894-1895.

President—J. H. WOOLLEY.

First Vice-President—C. E. BENTLEY.

Second Vice-President—D. M. GALLIE.

Recording Secretary—A. H. PECK.

Corresponding Secretary—H. A. COSTNER.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—J. J. WHALEY.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, J. N. CROUSE,
J. G. REID.

Board of Censors—D. C. BACON, H. W. SALE, E. R.
CARPENTER.

1895-1896.

President—W. V.-B. AMES.

First Vice-President—C. E. BENTLEY.

Second Vice-President—J. A. DUNN.

Recording Secretary—A. H. PECK.

Corresponding Secretary—H. A. COSTNER.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—H. A. GUNTHER.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, J. N. CROUSE,
J. G. REID.

Board of Censors—D. C. BACON, E. R. CARPENTER,
H. W. SALE.

1896-1897.

President—LOUIS OTTOFY.

First Vice-President—J. E. HINKINS.

Second Vice-President—H. A. COSTNER.

Recording Secretary—A. H. PECK.

Corresponding Secretary—GEO. B. PERRY.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—H. A. GUNTHER.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, J. N. CROUSE,
J. G. REID.Board of Censors—G. T. CARPENTER, B. D. WIKOFF,
G. W. SCHWARTZ.

1897-1898.

President—A. H. PECK.

First Vice-President—D. M. GALLIE.

Second Vice-President—G. T. CARPENTER.

Recording Secretary—E. MAWHINNEY.

Corresponding Secretary—G. B. PERRY.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—H. A. GUNTHER.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, J. N. CROUSE,
J. G. REID.Board of Censors—D. M. CATTELL, A. W.
McCANDLESS, J. J. WHALEY.

1898-1899.

President—J. E. HINKINS.

First Vice-President—D. C. BACON.

Second Vice-President—E. A. ROYCE.

Recording Secretary—ELGIN MAWHINNEY.

Corresponding Secretary—C. S. BIGELOW.

Treasurer—E. D. SWAIN.

Librarian—C. J. MERRIMAN.

Board of Directors—G. H. CUSHING, J. N. CROUSE,
J. G. REID.Board of Censors—A. W. HARLAN, W. V.-B.
AMES, C. N. JOHNSON.

1899-1900.

President--GARRETT NEWKIRK.

First Vice-President--G. W. COOK.

Second Vice-President--B. D. WIKOFF.

Recording Secretary--ELGIN MAWHINNEY.

Corresponding Secretary--C. S. BIGELOW.

Treasurer--A. B. CLARK.

Librarian--H. W. SALE.

Board of Directors--E. NOYES, J. N. CROUSE, J. G. REID.

Board of Censors--A. W. HARLAN, C. N. JOHNSON, W. V.-B. AMES.

1900-1901.

President--GEO. W. COOK.

First Vice-President--GEO. B. PERRY.

Second Vice-President--H. J. GOSLEE.

Recording Secretary--ELGIN MAWHINNEY.

Corresponding Secretary--C. S. BIGELOW.

Treasurer--A. B. CLARK.

Librarian--H. W. SALE.

Board of Directors--E. NOYES, J. E. HINKINS, J. G. REID.

Board of Censors--W. V.-B. AMES, C. N. JOHNSON, A. W. HARLAN.

1901-1902.

President--A. B. CLARK.

First Vice-President--GEO. B. PERRY.

Second Vice-President--B. D. WIKOFF.

Recording Secretary--ELGIN MAWHINNEY.

Corresponding Secretary--C. S. BIGELOW.

Treasurer--E. R. CARPENTER.

Librarian--H. W. SALE.

Board of Directors--E. NOYES, J. E. HINKINS, J. G. REID.

Board of Censors--W. V.-B. AMES, C. N. JOHNSON, A. W. HARLAN.

1902-1903.

President—ELGIN MAWHINNEY.

First Vice-President—H. J. GOSLEE.

Second Vice-President—F. B. NOYES.

Recording Secretary—WINTHROP GIRLING.

Corresponding Secretary—C. S. BIGELOW.

Treasurer—E. R. CARPENTER.

Librarian—H. W. SALE.

Board of Directors—E. NOYES, J. E. HINKINS,
J. G. REID.Board of Censors—A. W. HARLAN, W. V.-B. AMES,
C. N. JOHNSON.

LIST OF MEMBERS.

LIST OF MEMBERS.

Up to October 1, 1902.

Allen, A. B.,	Venetian Bldg.
Allshouse, C. E.,	377 N. Clark St.
Ames, W. V.-B.,	Venetian Bldg.
Andrews, C. F.,	Columbus Memorial Bldg.
Appel, Geo.,	Field Bldg.
Arnold, L. H.,	31st St. and Forrest Ave.
Atkinson, Florence,	Stewart Bldg.
Bacon, D. C.,	281 Lincoln Ave.
Baldwin, A. E.,	828 W. Adams St.
Banzet, G. T.,	Field Bldg.
Beck, Rudolph,	Reliance Bldg.
Benham, Emma L.,	Venetian Bldg.
Bentley, C. E.,	Reliance Bldg.
Bentley, Geo. H.,	Venetian Bldg.
Bigelow, C. S.,	Stewart Bldg.
Black, Arthur D.,	Field Bldg.
Bridges, J. S.,	Reliance Bldg.
Brophy, H.,	648 W. North Ave.
Brophy, R. C.,	9 S. Halsted St.
Brophy, T. W.,	Field Bldg.
Brown, A. E.,	1911 Michigan Ave.
Brown, L. R.,	1911 Michigan Ave.
Buckley, J. P.,	785 W. Madison St.
Burnett, F. E.,	61 Bowen Ave.

Carpenter, E. R.,	28 Jackson Boul.
Carpenter, G. T.	103 State St.
Case, C. S.,	Stewart Bldg.
Cattell, D. M.,	Reliance Bldg.
Cheeseman, F. E.,	Field Bldg.
Cigrand, B. J.,	North and Milwaukee Aves.
Cigrand, P. J.,	718 South Halsted St.
Clark, A. B.,	Venetian Bldg.
Clark, W. G.,	Lakota Hotel.
Cockrell, R. E.,	Stewart Bldg.
Collins, R. E.,	Champlain Bldg.
Coltrin, C. W.,	129 N. Park Ave., Austin.
Cook, G. W.,	The Kenwood.
Cooper, A. W.,	100 State St.
Corwin, John,	580 W. Madison St.
Cross, H. A.,	560 E. 55th St.
Crouse, J. N.,	2231 Prairie Ave.
Curtis, W. W.,	Venetian Bldg.
Davis, A. N.,	Field Bldg.
Davis, L. L.,	103 State St.
Dennis, G. J.,	The Kenwood.
Dicus, J. B.,	70 State St.
Dittmar, G. W.,	813 W. Harrison St.
Dostal, J. W.,	3673 State St.
Dreibrodt, Fritz,	Field Bldg.
Dunn, J. Austin,	Field Bldg.
Dunn, J. Elwood,	Reliance Bldg.
Dunn, W. H.,	100 22d St.
Eiles, F. S.,	Blue Island, Ill.
Elliott, E. W.,	439 W. Madison St.
Ely, J. O.,	1831 Michigan Ave.

Fellman, W. O.,	. . .	132 Lake St., Oak Park.
Fernandez, E. M. S.,	. . .	Venetian Bldg.
Fischer, H. G.,	. . .	550 Wilson Ave.
Fishell, Elkan W.,	. . .	Schiller Bldg.
Fisher, Wm. C.,	. . .	Fort Sheridan.
Fox, W. H.,	. . .	Stewart Bldg.
Frauz, Hugo,	. . .	Field Bldg.
Freeman, A. B.,	. . .	Venetian Bldg.
Fuqua, V. H.,	. . .	Stewart Bldg.
Gallie, Don M.,	. . .	Reliance Bldg.
Gardiner, F. H.,	. . .	Field Bldg.
Garrett, C. M.,	. . .	Reliance Bldg.
Gethro, F. W.,	. . .	Field Bldg.
Gilmar, T. L.,	. . .	Field Bldg.
Girling, Winthrop,	. . .	Field Bldg.
Good, Robert,	. . .	Champlain Bldg.
Goslee, H. J.,	. . .	580 W. Madison St.
Gramm, C. T.,	. . .	103 State St.
Green, L. O.,	. . .	Reliance Bldg.
Green, W. F.,	. . .	Rood Bldg., Evanston.
Gunther, H. A.,	. . .	3300 Cottage Grove Ave.
Hague, A. S.,	. . .	257 Belmont Ave.
Hare, D. A.,	. . .	100 State St.
Hargett, A. V.,	. . .	Venetian Bldg.
Harlan, A. W.,	. . .	Masonic Temple.
Harlan, Paul H.,	. . .	Masonic Temple.
Harper, W. E.,	. . .	3456 Wabash Ave.
Harris, A. J.,	. . .	279 Warren Ave.
Harrison, H. E.,	. . .	932 W. 86th Place.
Hartt, C. F.,	. . .	Masonic Temple.
Hartt, C. L.,	. . .	Masonic Temple.
Haskins, G. W.,	. . .	100 State St.

Hebert, A. W.,	Field Bldg.
Henderson, L. D.,	600 Davis St., Evanston.
Hewett, A. C.,	Masonic Temple.
Hewett, A. M.,	824 W. Madison St.
Hinkins, J. E.,	131 53d St.
Hurlbut, C. H.,	Evanston.
James, A. F.,	Stewart Bldg.
Johnson, C. N.,	Field Bldg.
Johnson, F. M.,	511 Belden Ave.
Jones, E. X.,	Champlain Bldg.
Jones, C. E.,	813 W. Harrison St.
Kaas, Therese,	Venetian Bldg.
Keefe, J. E.,	Venetian Bldg.
Kimball, R. H.,	Venetian Bldg.
Klein, Carl,	398 Wells St.
Knowles, S. J.,	Stewart Bldg.
Logan, W. H. G.,	785 Winthrop Ave.
Lourie, L. S.,	92 State St.
Lund, Anna M.,	Venetian Bldg.
Markle, A. M.,	103 State St.
Martin, B. F.,	70 State St.
Matteson, A. E.,	3700 Cottage Grove Ave.
MaWhinney, Elgin,	Venetian Bldg.
MacDonald, H. E.,	47th and State Sts.
McCandlers, A. W.,	Champlain Bldg.
McClure, T. H.,	43d St. & Cottage Grove Ave.
McDowell, J. N.,	Venetian Bldg.
Mears, Arthur,	175 Dearborn St.
Menges, Geo. W.,	5500 Halsted St.
Methvin, C. S.,	Oak Park.
Moorehead, F. B.,	580 W. Madison St.

Morey, A. E.,	Field Bldg.
Morrill, C. G.,	2108 W. Congress St.
Nevius, L. W.,	Stewart Bldg.
Noyes, Edmund,	Stewart Bldg.
Noyes, F. B.	Stewart Bldg.
Nyman, J. E.,	Venetian Bldg.
Oakley, A. J.,	63d St. and Stewart Ave.
Paine, R. M.,	869 N. Clark St.
Parker, Fred W.,	6026 Monroe Ave.
Parker, Ralph W.,	6026 Monroe Ave.
Peck, A. H.,	Stewart Bldg.
Perry, E. J.,	Stewart Bldg.
Perry, Geo. B.,	100 State St.
Pfeifer, J. D.,	Masonic Temple.
Pfennig, E.,	18 Clybourne Ave.
Phipps, L. H.,	1072 Lincoln Ave.
Pitts, Geo. W.,	Field Bldg.
Powell, T. E.,	92 State St.
Prothero, J. H.,	Randolph and Dearborn Sts.
Pruyn, C. P.,	Stewart Bldg.
Reed, F. D.,	6303 Monroe Ave.
Reeves, W. T.,	100 State St.
Reid, J. G.,	Champlain Bldg.
Richardson, F. M.,	Masonic Temple.
Rimes, M. B.,	6331 Wentworth Ave.
Rittenhouse, F. N.,	5739 Rosalie Court.
Roach, F. E.,	Champlain Bldg.
Roberts, N. J.,	Waukegan, Ill.
Root, M. A.,	100 State St.
Ross, J. H.,	Champlain Bldg.
Royce, E. A.,	Field Bldg.

Sackett, H. R.,	Stewart Bldg.
Sale, H. W.,	578 W. Madison St.
Schiff, D. C.	103 State St.
Schuhmann, H. H.,	103 State St.
Sims, Stella,	Reliance Bldg.
Skinner, F. H.,	70 State St.
Slonaker, J. W.,	100 State St.
Smith, C. L.,	St. Charles, Ill.
Smith, M. E.,	163 State St.
Smyser, J. H.,	70 State St.
Stephan, F. W.,	Field Bldg.
Stevens, W. A.,	2631 Wabash Ave.
Stewart, L. K.,	103 State St.
Taggart, W. H.,	Masonic Temple
Tenny, L. S.,	100 State St.
Terry, C. S.,	103 State St.
Thompson, C. N.,	3017 Michigan Ave.
Thompson, Florence,	Masonic Temple
Trompen, C. N.,	2561 11th St.
Upson, I. F.,	Masonic Temple.
Wagner, R. H.,	Field Bldg.
Wambold, Chas.,	Trude Bldg.
Wassall, J. W.,	Stewart Bldg.
Watt, J. R.,	1044 Jackson Boul.
West, H. C.,	202 N. State St.
Wetterer, H.,	Ogden Bldg.
Whaley, J. J.,	521 Dearborn Ave.
Wikoff, B. D.,	Masonic Temple
Woolley, J. H.,	Reliance Bldg.
Worcester, H. W.,	Champlain Bldg.
Yorker, F. V.,	48 E. 43d St.
Zinn, F. H.,	100 State St.

HONORARY MEMBERS.

Black, G. V., . . . Randolph and Dearborn Sts.
 Mummery, J. H., London, Eng.

CORRESPONDING MEMBERS.

Buckley, F. L., 3 Rue des Petits Champs, Constantinople
 Hunt, A. O., Omaha
 Ottofy, L., 50 Escolta, Manila
 York, E. L., Berlin

LIFE MEMBERS.

Haskell, L. P., . . . , . Stewart Bldg.
 Swain, E. D., Seneca Falls, N. Y.

